
90 North Main Street | Tooele, Utah 84074 
435-843-2113 | 435-843-2119 (fax) | www.tooelecity.gov

City Recorder’s Office 

Department
PUBLIC NOTICE 

Notice is hereby given that the Tooele City Council will meet in a Business Meeting on Wednesday, January 17, 

2024, at the hour of 7:00 p.m.  The meeting will be held in the Tooele City Hall Council Chambers, located at 90 

North Main Street, Tooele, Utah. The complete public notice is posted on the Utah Public Notice Website 

www.utah.gov, the Tooele City Website www.tooelecity.gov, and at Tooele City Hall. To request a copy of the 

public notice or for additional inquiries please contact Michelle Pitt, City Recorder at (435)843-2111 or 

michellep@tooelecity.gov. 

We encourage you to join the City Council meeting electronically by visiting the Tooele City YouTube 

Channel, at https://www.youtube.com/@tooelecity or by going to YouTube.com and searching “Tooele City 

Channel”. If you are attending electronically and would like to submit a comment for the public comment 

period or for a public hearing item, please email cmpubliccomment@tooelecity.gov anytime up until the start of 

the meeting.  Emails will be read at the designated points in the meeting. 

AGENDA 

1. Pledge of Allegiance

2. Roll Call

3. Mayor’s Community Recognition Awards

4. Public Comment Period

5. Ordinance 2024-02 An Ordinance of the Tooele City Council Amending Tooele City Code Section

4-8-2 Regarding Dead End Streets and Cul-De-Sacs

Presented by Paul Hansen, City Engineer 

6. Resolution 2024-05 A Resolution of the Tooele City Council Amending the Tooele City Fee Schedule

to Include Increased Water Meter Costs

Presented by Jamie Grandpre, Public Works Director 

7. Resolution 2024-06 A Resolution of the Tooele City Council Amending the Tooele City Fee Schedule

Regarding Garbage Containers

Presented by Shannon Wimmer, Finance Director 

8. Resolution 2024-07 A Resolution of the Tooele City Council Approving a Real Estate Purchase

Contract for Land with She Enterprises, LLC

Presented by Mayor Debbie Winn 

9. Public Hearing and Motion on Ordinance 2023-39 An Ordinance of Tooele City Approving a

Landmark Site Designation Process for the Preservation of Significant Historic Properties

Presented by Jared Steward, Economic Development Director 

http://www.tooelecity.gov/
http://www.utah.gov/
http://www.tooelecity.gov/
https://www.youtube.com/@tooelecity
mailto:cmpubliccomment@tooelecity.gov


 

 
90 North Main Street | Tooele, Utah 84074 

435-843-2113 | 435-843-2119 (fax) | www.tooelecity.gov 

City Recorder’s Office 

Department  

 

10. Subdivision Plat Amendment Request by Richmond American Homes to Amend Lots 237, 238, and 

239 of the Drumore at Overlake Phase 2 Subdivision Plat at 12 E Broxburn Way and 1532 N Baen 

Way in the R1-7 Zoning District 

Presented by Andrew Aagard, Community Development Director 

 

11. Invoices & Purchase Orders 

Presented by Michelle Pitt, City Recorder 

12. Minutes 

13. Adjourn 

 

_______________________ 

Michelle Y. Pitt, Tooele City Recorder 

 

Pursuant to the Americans with Disabilities Act, individuals needing special accommodations should notify 

Michelle Y. Pitt, Tooele City Recorder, at 435-843-2111 or michellep@tooelecity.gov, prior to the meeting. 

http://www.tooelecity.gov/
mailto:michellep@tooelecity.org


TOOELE CITY CORPORATION 
 

ORDINANCE 2024-02 
 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOOELE CITY COUNCIL AMENDING TOOELE CITY CODE 
SECTION 4-8-2 REGARDING DEAD END STREETS AND CUL-DE-SACS. 
 
 WHEREAS, Utah Constitution, Article XI, Section 5 directly confers upon Utah’s 
charter cities, of which Tooele City is the only remaining such city, “the authority to 
exercise all powers relating to municipal affairs, and to adopt and enforce within its limits, 
local police, sanitary and similar regulations not in conflict with the general law”; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, in addition to the municipal powers bestowed by the Utah Constitution 
to Charter Cities, Utah Code Section 10-8-84 enables Tooele City to “pass all ordinances 
and rules, and make all regulations . . . as are necessary and proper to provide for the 
safety and preserve the health, and promote the prosperity, improve the morals, peace 
and good order, comfort, and convenience of the city and its inhabitants, and for the 
protection of property in the city”; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the Utah Code grants authority to municipalities to regulate their public 
streets (see UCA 10-8-8, -8.6, -11, -23, -24, -25, -30, -32, and UCA 72-3-1-4); and, 
 
 WHEREAS, TCC Chapter 4-8 regulates and establishes the standards for the 
construction of Tooele City’s public streets, including dead end streets and cul-de-sacs; 
and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Administration recommends an amendment to TCC Section 
4-8-2 regarding dead end streets that cul-de-sacs be required if a dead end street is more 
than 150 feet in length, or more than one single-family residence in depth, whichever 
distance is less, whether the street is temporary and is proposed to be extended in the 
future, or whether the street is constructed from the beginning to the final approved length; 
and, 
 
 WHEREAS, this amendment is necessary because of the fact that if a snow plow, 
garbage truck, fire truck, or other large vehicle needs to drive down a dead end street in 
service of the public health and safety, a safe place to turn around these large vehicles is 
necessary, whereas if the street depth is only one residential lot depth, such an 
accommodation is less critical; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, this amendment, and the 150-foot maximum street length without a 
cul-de-sac, is consistent with the 2021 International Fire Code, Appendix D – Fire 
Apparatus Access Roads, specifically paragraph D103.4 Dead End Street, which reads 
as shown below: 
 



 
 
 WHEREAS, while the above-cited provisions of the Fire Code allow “hammerhead” 
and “Y” turn-arounds, the City Administration recommends against them for purposes of 
public streets under Section 4-8-2, inasmuch as they are more difficult and less safe to 
navigate by large vehicles including fire trucks: 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE TOOELE CITY COUNCIL that 
Tooele City Code Section 4-8-2 regarding dead end streets and cul-de-sacs is hereby 
amended as shown in its entirety in Exhibit A, attached. 
 
 This Ordinance is necessary for the immediate preservation of the peace, health, 
safety, or welfare of Tooele City and shall become effective immediately upon passage, 
without further publication, by authority of the Tooele City Charter. 
 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Ordinance is passed by the Tooele City Council this 
____ day of _______________, 2024. 
  



TOOELE CITY COUNCIL 
(For) (Against) 
 
 
______________________________ ______________________________ 
 
 
______________________________ ______________________________ 
 
 
______________________________ ______________________________ 
 
 
______________________________ ______________________________ 
 
 
______________________________ ______________________________ 
 
 
ABSTAINING:  ___________________________________________ 
 

MAYOR OF TOOELE CITY 
(Approved) (Disapproved) 
 
 
______________________________ ______________________________ 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
__________________________ 
Michelle Y. Pitt, City Recorder 
        
 
           S E A L 
 
 
 
Approved as to Form: _________________________________ 
    Roger Evans Baker, Tooele City Attorney 

  



 
 
 

Exhibit A 
 
 
 

TCC Section 4-8-2, As Proposed 
 

(showing highlighted additions and deletions) 
 



 

4-8.1  (June 13, 2023) 
 

CHAPTER 8.  ROAD AND BRIDGE 
CONSTRUCTION STANDARDS 
 
4-8-1. Specifications Adopted - Amendments. 
4-8-2. Street Design. 
4-8-2.1. Infill Overlay District Street Design. 
  (Repealed.) 
4-8-2.2. Arterial Streets. 
4-8-2.3. Major Collector Streets. 
4-8-2.4. Minor Collector Streets. 
4-8-2.5. Local Streets. 
4-8-2.6. Substandard Local Streets. 
4-8-2.7. Alleys. 
4-8-2.8. Curb and Gutter, Parkstrips, and 
  Sidewalks. 
4-8-3. Street Widths. 
4-8-4. Street Improvements. 
4-8-5. Fire Hydrants. 
4-8-6. Street Lighting. 
4-8-7. Alleys. 
4-8-8. Blocks. 
4-8-9. Street Names and Signage. 
4-8-10. Building Address Numbers. 
4-8-11. Bridge Standards and Design. 
 
 
4-8-1. Specifications Adopted - Amendments. 
 The most recent edition of the Standard 
Specifications for Road and Bridge Construction, as 
adopted, updated, revised, and published by The Utah 
Department of Transportation, is herewith adopted by 
reference as the standard specifications for road and 
bridge construction, in its entirety, including all 
requirements for bidding, award of contract, scope of 
work, control of work, control of material, legal 
regulations and responsibility to the public, 
prosecution and progress of work, measurement and 
payment for work, and all other provisions therein 
contained with the following amendments thereto: 
 (1) The following definitions are amended: 
  (a) Commission: Tooele City Corporation. 
  (b) Department:  Tooele City Community 
Development and Public Works Department, inclusive 
of Engineering. 
  (c) Director:  The Director of the 
Community Development and Public Works 
Department. 
  (d) Engineer:  The Tooele City Engineer or 
consulting engineer assigned to the project in question, 
as designated by the Director. 
  (e) State:  The State of Utah and its political 
subdivisions acting through their authorized 
representatives. 
 (2) In all instances where the context of said 
specifications may be interpreted in more than one 
manner, said specifications shall be interpreted so as 

to apply to Tooele City Corporation rather than the 
State of Utah, its road commission, or other agencies, 
and shall be interpreted in such a manner as to validate 
the provision in question. 
(Ord. 2015-07, 03-18-2015) (Ord. 1997-09, 03-05-
1997) (Ord, 1974-16, 12-09-1974)   
 
4-8-2. Street Design. 
 (1) All streets shall be subject to topographical 
conditions, public safety, and the relation to the 
proposed uses of land to be served by such streets.  
Where uses of land are not shown on a land use plan 
or plat approved by the City, the arrangement of streets 
in a subdivision and elsewhere shall either: 
  (a) provide for the continuation or 
appropriate projection of existing streets in 
surrounding areas; or 
  (b) conform to a plan for the area or 
neighborhood approved or adopted by the City 
Council to meet a particular situation where 
topographical and other conditions make continuance 
or conformance to existing streets impracticable. 
 (2) Streets shall be laid out so as to intersect as 
nearly as possible at right angles and no street shall 
intersect any other street at less than 60-degree angles. 
 (3) Sections 2.2 through 2.7 of this Chapter 
describe and illustrate the typical functional 
classifications, and the standards for construction and 
improvement, applicable to street rights-of-way within 
Tooele City.  See also Table 4-8-2.6: Table of 
Substandard Local Street Requirements. 
 (4) Dead end streets.   
  (a) Dead end streets, including cul-de-sacs, 
where permitted, shall not be more than 250 feet in 
length measured from the centerline of the last 
intersecting street to the centerpoint of the turnaround 
area.  
  (b) Dead end streets, whether temporary or 
permanent, greater than 150 feet in length, or deeper 
than one single-family residential lot in depth (whether 
front-yard frontage or side-yard frontage), whichever 
is less, shall require a cul-de-sac. 
  (c) Cul-de-sacs shall have a minimum 
outside right-of-way radius of 50 feet at the closed end, 
unless the street ends at a point where the subdivider 
or developer intends to extend a street pursuant to a 
preliminary subdivision plan submitted and approved 
by the City, in which case the turnaround may be a 
minimum radius of 40 feet and constructed of a 
temporary nature acceptable to the Tooele City Fire 
Department.   
  (d) Dead end streets, including Ccul-de-sacs, 
where permitted, may be extended beyond 250 feet with 
written findings from the Public Works Director, in 
consultation with the Community Development Director 
and Fire Chief, that: 



 

4-8.2  (June 13, 2023) 
 

   (i) doing so is necessary to reasonably 
develop properties adjacent to the dead end streetcul-de-
sac; 
   (ii) doing so is necessary to provide 
vehicular safe access and utility service to the properties 
adjacent to the dead end streetcul-de-sac;  
   (iii) no other option exists for providing 
access to the properties adjacent to the dead end streetcul-
de-sac; 
   (iv) the cul-de-sac turnaround radius at the 
closed end of the dead end street, as required in this 
Section, is increased by not less than ten feet; and, 
   (v) doing so will not violate applicable 
provisions of the adopted building or fire codes. 
 (5) No more than two cross streets shall intersect 
at any one intersection. 
 (6) Street grades shall be:  
  (a) more than 1.0% without written findings 
from the Public Works Director establishing that the 
grade must be less, but in no case shall be less than 
0.5%; 
  (b) less than 10% for minor collector streets, 
local streets, and alleys; and  
  (c) less than 7% for major collector and 
arterial streets. 
 (7) Streets shall be leveled, whenever possible,  
to a grade of less than 4% for a distance of at least 100 
feet approaching all intersections, and shall be a 
maximum grade of 3% at the intersection. 
 (8) All crests and sags shall have a vertical curve 
pursuant to Table 4-8-2 (Vertical Curve Table). 
 (9) Minimum radii of horizontal curvature along 
the center line shall be: 
  (a) 300 feet for arterial class streets; 
  (b) 250 feet for major collector class streets; 
  (c) 200 feet for minor collector class streets; 
and 
  (d) 100 feet for local class streets and alleys. 
 (10) Between reversed curves there shall be a 
tangent at least 100 feet long. 
 (11) Intersecting right-of-way boundaries and 
improvements for street, alley, and pavement 
intersections shall be rounded by an arc, the minimum 
radius of which shall be: 
  (a) 20 feet for arterial class streets; 
  (b) 20 feet for major collector class streets; 
  (c) 15 feet for minor collector class streets; 
  (d) 15 feet for local class streets; and 
  (e) five feet for alleys; 
  (f) 20 feet for pavement edges where the 
existing right-of-way improvements do not include 
curb and gutter. 

When streets of different classes intersect, the greater 
radius requirement shall be the requirement. 
 (12) Whenever a street adjacent to a proposed 
development is not fully improved, excluding 
sidewalk and parkstrip on the opposite side of the 
street, the subdivider or developer shall be responsible 
for construction of the entire width of the street, except 
for sidewalk and parkstrip on the opposite side of the 
street, for the entire length of the development project 
including tapered transitions, as necessary, beyond the 
length of the development project, as outlined in 
Section 4-8-4(4) and (5). 
 (13) No new half-streets shall be permitted.  
 (14) If development plans call for peripheral 
streets to be constructed, the subdivider or developer 
shall be responsible for construction of the entire 
width of the street, except for sidewalk and parkstrip 
on the opposite side of the street, as outlined in Section 
4-8-4(4) and (5).   
 (15) All streets proposed or intended to be built, 
owned, or maintained as private streets shall be 
designed and constructed to the same standards and 
specifications outlined in this Chapter for public local 
class or larger streets.  Private streets may not be 
reduced in width narrower than 30 feet of asphalt with 
curb and gutter on each side.  Any private street 
proposed to be narrower than 34 feet of asphalt shall 
be required to prevent on-street parking through the 
provision of adequate off-street parking as outlined in 
Chapters 7-4 and 7-11a and through private 
enforcement.  Land use applications that include 
proposed private streets that are narrower than 34 feet 
of asphalt shall include, as a part of the application, a 
mechanism by which perpetual private enforcement 
preventing on-street parking is assured.  Applications 
that include private streets narrower than 34 feet in 
asphalt width shall be subject to review and approval 
of the proposed private street design and private 
parking enforcement mechanism by the designated 
approval authority for the type of land use application, 
following recommendation from the Tooele City Fire 
Chief, Community Development Department, Public 
Works Department, and the City Engineer.  The City 
Attorney shall review the proposed private parking 
enforcement mechanism and provide a 
recommendation to the approval authority on that 
proposed mechanism.  Land use applications may 
propose alterations to the cross section for the street 
regarding sidewalks and parkstrips but shall maintain 
pedestrian access of at least a 5-foot width throughout 
the development and in compliance with requirements 
of the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA).

 



TOOELE CITY CORPORATION 
 

RESOLUTION 2024-05 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOOELE CITY COUNCIL AMENDING THE TOOELE CITY 
FEE SCHEDULE TO INCLUDE INCREASED WATER METER COSTS. 
 
 WHEREAS, Tooele City Code §1-26-1 authorizes the City Council to establish City 
fees by resolution for activities regulated by the City and services provided by the City; 
and, 
 
 WHEREAS, Utah Code §10-3-718 authorizes the City Council to exercise 
administrative powers, such as establishing city fees and regulating the use of city 
property, by resolution; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, under the Council-Mayor form of municipal government, established 
and governed by the Tooele City Charter (2006) and Utah Code §10-3b-201 et seq., the 
Mayor exercises all executive and administrative powers; however, it has been the 
practice of Tooele City for all fees proposed by the Mayor and City Administration to be 
approved by the City Council; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the City requires builders to pay the City, at the time of building permit 
issuance, for water meters which the City has purchased and storecd for purposes of 
meter quality and uniformity; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, current water meter costs are as follows:  
 

Meter Size Meter Cost  Meter Size Meter Cost 
¾” $306.67  3” $1,889.40 
1” $337.88  4” $3,176.16 
1½” $1,342.28  6” $5,233.33 
2” $1,524.90    

 
 WHEREAS, the cost for water meters has risen, and the City Administration asks 
the City Council to amend the Fee Schedule to include the new meter costs, as follows: 
 

Meter Size Meter Cost  Meter Size Meter Cost 
¾” $402  3” $2,365 
1” $455  4” $3,960 
1½” $1,629  6” $6,691 
2” $1,848    

 
 WHEREAS, the new meter costs represent the City’s actual cost of acquiring the 
water meters, with accompanying hardware, such as, gaskets, bolts, washers, nuts, and 
lock nuts, rounded up to the nearest dollar: 
 



 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE TOOELE CITY COUNCIL that 
the Tooele City Fee Schedule is hereby amended to include the new water meter costs 
specified above. 
 

This Resolution shall become effective upon passage, without further publication, 
by authority of the Tooele City Charter. 
    
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Resolution is passed by the Tooele City Council this 
____ day of _______________, 2024. 
  



TOOELE CITY COUNCIL 
(For) (Against) 
 
 
______________________________ ______________________________ 
 
 
______________________________ ______________________________ 
 
 
______________________________ ______________________________ 
 
 
______________________________ ______________________________ 
 
 
______________________________ ______________________________ 
 
 
ABSTAINING:  ___________________________________________ 
 

MAYOR OF TOOELE CITY 
(Approved) (Disapproved) 
 
 
______________________________ ______________________________ 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
__________________________ 
Michelle Y. Pitt, City Recorder 
        
 
           S E A L 
 
 
 
Approved as to Form: ___________________________ 
    Roger Evans Baker, City Attorney 
 
 
 



TOOELE CITY CORPORATION 
 

RESOLUTION 2024-06 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOOELE CITY COUNCIL AMENDING THE TOOELE CITY 
FEE SCHEDULE REGARDING GARBAGE CONTAINERS. 
 
 WHEREAS, Tooele City Code §1-26-1 authorizes the City Council to establish City 
fees by resolution for activities regulated by the City and services provided by the City; 
and, 
 
 WHEREAS, Utah Code §10-3-718 authorizes the City Council to exercise 
administrative powers, such as establishing city fees and regulating the use of city 
property, by resolution; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, under the Council-Mayor form of municipal government, established 
and governed by the Tooele City Charter (2006) and Utah Code §10-3b-201 et seq., the 
Mayor exercises all executive and administrative powers; however, it has been the 
practice of Tooele City for all fees proposed by the Mayor and City Administration to be 
approved by the City Council; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, Utah Constitution, Article XI, Section 5 directly confers upon Utah’s 
charter cities, including Tooele City, “the authority to exercise all powers relating to 
municipal affairs, and to adopt and enforce within its limits, local police, sanitary and 
similar regulations not in conflict with the general law”; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, Utah Code Section 10-8-84 enables Tooele City to “pass all 
ordinances and rules, and make all regulations . . . as are necessary and proper to provide 
for the safety and preserve the health, and promote the prosperity, improve the morals, 
peace and good order, comfort, and convenience of the city and its inhabitants, and for 
the protection of property in the city”; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, Utah Code Section 10-3-717 expressly enables Tooele City to 
“establish charges for garbage collection” by resolution; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, Chapter 8-3 of the Tooele City Code regulates garbage collection and 
solid waste management, and requires all residences (with some exceptions) to have 
approved garbage containers and to pay garbage collection fees and fees for garbage 
containers; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, historically, Tooele City has provided garbage containers to 
residences, at no cost, upon the owners opening City utility accounts, but the increased 
cost of new garbage containers, together with the increased number of containers in the 
City, has made it necessary for the City Administration to recommend that the cost of 
garbage containers be the responsibility of the persons receiving the service, not a burden 
to the City general fund; and, 



 
 WHEREAS, the City Administration recommends that the Tooele City Fee 
Schedule be amended to include the cost of new and replacement garbage containers 
(all residential garbage containers are owned by the City), as well as replacement 
recycling containers (recycling containers are owned by Ace, not the City, and recycling 
rates include the cost of the first container), in the following amounts, which amounts 
represent the actual cost to obtain the containers: 

• New garbage container: $65 

• Replacement garbage container: $65 

• Replacement recycling container: $80 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE TOOELE CITY COUNCIL that 
the Tooele City Fee Schedule is hereby amended to add the cost or new and replacement 
residential garbage containers and replacement recycling containers. 

 
This Resolution shall become effective upon passage, without further publication, 

by authority of the Tooele City Charter. 
    
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Resolution is passed by the Tooele City Council this 
____ day of _______________, 2024. 
  



TOOELE CITY COUNCIL 
(For) (Against) 
 
 
______________________________ ______________________________ 
 
 
______________________________ ______________________________ 
 
 
______________________________ ______________________________ 
 
 
______________________________ ______________________________ 
 
 
______________________________ ______________________________ 
 
 
ABSTAINING:  ___________________________________________ 
 

MAYOR OF TOOELE CITY 
(Approved) (Disapproved) 
 
 
______________________________ ______________________________ 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
__________________________ 
Michelle Y. Pitt, City Recorder 
        
 
           S E A L 
 
 
 
Approved as to Form: ___________________________ 
    Roger Evans Baker, City Attorney 
 



 TOOELE CITY CORPORATION 
 

RESOLUTION 2024-07 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE TOOELE CITY COUNCIL APPROVING A REAL ESTATE 
PURCHASE CONTRACT FOR LAND WITH SHE ENTERPRISES, LLC. 
 
 WHEREAS, Tooele City’s central campus consists of City Hall, Fire Station #1, 
and the Tooele City Police Department building, and the campus lacks adequate parking 
to serve employees and the public; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, during construction of the new TCPD building, the City negotiated for 
the temporary use of vacant land to the north of City Hall, and the City now desires to 
purchase that land for a permanent employee and public parking area; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the land is identified as the eastern 0.35 acres of parcel number 02-
032-0-0018 (“Property”); and, 
 
 WHEREAS, SHE Enterprises, LLC owns the Property, and has agreed to sell the 
Property to the City for the sum of $200,000; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the Property is important for optimal functioning of the City Hall 
campus for city employees and operations, and to better serve the public; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the City is currently renting other land in order to park City vehicles, 
but the land is not optimal for that parking, and purchasing the Property will allow the City 
to stop renting that land for parking; and,  
 
 WHEREAS, the City Administration requests the City Council’s approval of a Real 
Estate Purchase Contract for Land with SHE Enterprises, LLC: 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE TOOELE CITY COUNCIL that 
the Real Estate Purchase Contract for Land attached as Exhibit A with SHE Enterprises, 
LLC is hereby approved, and that the Mayor is hereby authorized to execute the Contract 
and other documents necessary for closing. 

 
This Resolution shall become effective upon passage, without further publication, 

by authority of the Tooele City Charter. 
 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Resolution is passed by the Tooele City Council 
this             day of                                          , 2024. 
 
 
 
  



TOOELE CITY COUNCIL 
 

(For) (Against) 
 
 
______________________________ ______________________________ 
 
 
______________________________ ______________________________ 
 
 
______________________________ ______________________________ 
 
 
______________________________ ______________________________ 
 
 
______________________________ ______________________________ 
 
 
ABSTAINING:  ___________________________________________ 
 

MAYOR OF TOOELE CITY 
(Approved) (Disapproved) 
 
 
______________________________ ______________________________ 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
                                                             
Michelle Y. Pitt, City Recorder 
        
 
           S E A L 
 
 
 
Approved as to Form:                                                                     
    Roger Evans Baker, Tooele City Attorney 
  



 
 
 
 

Exhibit A 
 
 
 

Real Estate Purchase Contract for Land 



TV
01/07/24

8:28 PM MST
dotloop verified

dotloop signature verification: dtlp.us/uVsr-ZPdg-WMN4

https://dtlp.us/uVsr-ZPdg-WMN4
https://dtlp.us/uVsr-ZPdg-WMN4


TV
01/07/24

8:28 PM MST
dotloop verified

dotloop signature verification: dtlp.us/uVsr-ZPdg-WMN4

https://dtlp.us/uVsr-ZPdg-WMN4
https://dtlp.us/uVsr-ZPdg-WMN4


TV
01/07/24

8:28 PM MST
dotloop verified

dotloop signature verification: dtlp.us/uVsr-ZPdg-WMN4

https://dtlp.us/uVsr-ZPdg-WMN4
https://dtlp.us/uVsr-ZPdg-WMN4


TV
01/07/24

8:28 PM MST
dotloop verified

dotloop signature verification: dtlp.us/uVsr-ZPdg-WMN4

https://dtlp.us/uVsr-ZPdg-WMN4
https://dtlp.us/uVsr-ZPdg-WMN4


TV
01/07/24

8:28 PM MST
dotloop verified

dotloop signature verification: dtlp.us/uVsr-ZPdg-WMN4

https://dtlp.us/uVsr-ZPdg-WMN4
https://dtlp.us/uVsr-ZPdg-WMN4


Tammy Varney dotloop verified
01/07/24 8:28 PM MST
4ZSN-GCNO-L0ND-XQUH

TV
01/07/24

8:28 PM MST
dotloop verified

dotloop signature verification: dtlp.us/uVsr-ZPdg-WMN4

https://dtlp.us/uVsr-ZPdg-WMN4
https://dtlp.us/uVsr-ZPdg-WMN4
https://dtlp.us/uVsr-ZPdg-WMN4


TV
01/07/24

8:28 PM MST
dotloop verified

dotloop signature verification: dtlp.us/uVsr-ZPdg-WMN4

https://dtlp.us/uVsr-ZPdg-WMN4
https://dtlp.us/uVsr-ZPdg-WMN4


Tammy Varney dotloop verified
01/07/24 8:28 PM MST
55GW-YJJA-NPCB-217A

TV
01/07/24

8:28 PM MST
dotloop verified

dotloop signature verification: dtlp.us/uVsr-ZPdg-WMN4

https://dtlp.us/uVsr-ZPdg-WMN4
https://dtlp.us/uVsr-ZPdg-WMN4
https://dtlp.us/uVsr-ZPdg-WMN4


 

 

 
 

TOOELE CITY CORPORATION 
 

ORDINANCE 2023-39 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF TOOELE CITY APPROVING A LANDMARK SITE 

DESIGNATION PROCESS FOR THE PRESERVATION OF SIGNIFICANT HISTORIC 

PROPERTIES. 

 

WHEREAS, Utah Constitution, Article XI, Section 5 directly confers upon Utah’s 

charter cities, including Tooele City, “the authority to exercise all powers relating to 

municipal affairs, and to adopt and enforce within its limits, local police, sanitary and 

similar regulations not in conflict with the general law”; and, 

 WHEREAS, UCA Section 10-8-84 enables Tooele City to “pass all ordinances and 

rules, and make all regulations . . . as are necessary and proper to provide for the safety 

and preserve the health, and promote the prosperity, improve the morals, peace and good 

order, comfort, and convenience of the city and its inhabitants, and for the protection of 

property in the city”; and, 

 WHEREAS, UCA Chapter 9-8a creates the State Historic Preservation Office and 

contains the State of Utah’s historic preservation policies; and, 

 WHEREAS, this ordinance approves a process by which the Historic Preservation 
Commission and the Planning Commission designate significant historic properties as 
landmark sites; and,  

 WHEREAS, the City Council recognizes that some properties and buildings within 
Tooele City hold particular historic value to the community which, if designated as 
landmark sites, would preclude demolition and establish a review process prior to 
significant construction; and,  

 WHEREAS, the City Council discussed the request in its October 18, 2023 public 
work meeting (see the meeting minutes attached as Exhibit B); and,  

 WHEREAS, the Planning Commission convened a public hearing on January 10, 
2024, and voted to recommend approval of this ordinance to the City Council (see the 
Planning Commission minutes attached as Exhibit C); and, 

 WHEREAS, the City Council convened a public hearing on January 17, 2024; 
and, 



 

 

 WHEREAS, the City Council finds that this ordinance is in the best interest of 
Tooele City because it will encourage preservation of culturally significant historic 
resources:  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE TOOELE CITY COUNCIL that 
Tooele City Code Title 2 Chapter 9 is hereby enacted/amended as shown in Exhibit A/as 
shown below. 

This Ordinance is necessary for the immediate preservation of the peace, health, safety, 
and welfare of Tooele City and its residents and businesses and shall become effective 
upon passage, without further publication, by authority of the Tooele City Charter. 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Ordinance is passed by the Tooele City Council this ____ 
day of _______________, 2024. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Exhibit A 

 

Designation Process for Landmark Sites 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

DESIGNATION OF LANDMARK SITES: 

1. DESIGNATIONS:  

Upon application of the property owner or by recommendation from the Historic 
Preservation Commission with written consent of the property owner, the Planning 
Commission may designate certain areas or structures as landmark sites if the property 
satisfies the criteria in this section. 

2. CRITERIA FOR DESIGNATIONS  

Any building, structure, or site (hereinafter referred to as “historic resource”) may be 
designated as a Tooele City landmark site if it meets the criteria in 
subsections 2a through 2c of this Section, and at least one (1) of the other criteria set 
forth in subsections 2d through 2g of this Section: 

a) It is located within the boundaries of Tooele City. 
b) It is at least seventy-five (75) years old. 
c) There are no major alterations or additions that have obscured or destroyed 

significant historic features, such as: changes in pitch of the main roof, 
enlargement or enclosure of windows on the principal façades, addition of upper 
stories or the removal of original upper stories, covering the exterior walls with 
non-historic materials, moving the resource from its original location to one that is 
dissimilar to the original, or additions which significantly detract from or obscure 
the original form and its appearance when viewed from the public rights-of-way. 

d) It is currently listed in the National Register of Historic Places, or it has been 
officially determined eligible for listing in the National Register of Historic Places 
under the provisions of 36 CFR 60.6. Properties listed on or determined to be 
eligible for the national register must still retain their structural, architectural, and 
historic integrity. This process may be undertaken by consulting the State 
Historic Preservation Office to conduct a Reconnaissance Level Survey. 

e) It is associated with events that have made a significant contribution to the broad 
patterns of the history of the city, state, or nation. 

f) It embodies the distinctive characteristics of a rare or unique type, period, or 
method of construction, or represents the work of an architect or builder 
recognized as a master in their field, or possesses high artistic values or style, or 
represents a significant and distinguishable entity whose components may lack 
individual distinction. 

g) It has yielded or may be likely to yield information important in prehistory or 
history (archaeological sites, for example). 

3. PROCESS FOR LANDMARK SITE DESIGNATION 

a) Application: Any person, group or association may nominate a prospective 
historic resource for formal designation. The initiation of designation proceedings 
must be made by submitting to the Economic Development Department an 

https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-36
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-36/chapter-I/part-60/section-60.6


 

 

application on a form furnished by the Department. The Department shall deliver 
all applications to the Historic Preservation Commission. The Commission, on its 
own motion, may initiate proceedings for the designation of a potential historic 
resource. The application shall be similar in form to that used for the National 
Register of Historic Places. 

b) Notice to Owner: Notice that an application for designation is being considered 
by the Historic Preservation Commission shall be given to the owner or owners of 
record of the historic resource. The owner or owners shall be notified by regular 
U.S. mail, at the mailing address on record with the Tooele County Recorder, 
and at the property address, at least five (5) business days prior to Commission 
consideration of the application. The owner or owners shall have the right to 
confer with the Commission prior to final action by the Commission. 

c) Recommendation of Commission: Following any investigation deemed necessary 
by the Commission, but in no case more than sixty (60) days after the receipt of 
any application for designation, the Historic Preservation Commission shall make 
a formal recommendation regarding the application. If designation proceedings 
are initiated by the Commission, final recommendation shall be made by the 
Commission no more than sixty (60) days after such initiation. The Commission’s 
recommendation shall be in writing and signed by the chairperson of the 
Commission, and shall state the reasons for the recommendation. The 
recommendation may be limited to the proposed historic resource as described 
in the application, or may include other historic resources. 

d) Forward Recommendations to Planning Commission: Within thirty (30) days after 
the final recommendation of the Historic Preservation Commission on a 
designation application, the Commission shall forward each application to the 
Planning Commission, together with the Commission’s recommendations. 

e) Action by Planning Commission: After considering the Historic Preservation 
Commission’s recommendations, the Planning Commission may, by resolution, 
designate historic resources. Prior to the passage of the resolution, the Planning 
Commission shall hold a public hearing, notice of which shall be published online 
at Utah Public Notice, on the Tooele City website, and mailed to the owner or 
owners of property proposed for designation. Notice shall be as described in this 
Section. Following designation by resolution, a notice of such shall be mailed to 
the owners of record together with a copy of the designation resolution and of 
this Title. 

f) Amend or Rescind: After an historic resource has been formally designated by 
the Planning Commission, the designation may be amended or rescinded in the 
same manner as the original designation was made. 

4. RECORDATION OF LANDMARK SITE DESIGNATION:  

Upon official designation, the City Recorder shall record the designation resolution with 
the County Recorder's Office. The City Recorder will also deliver copies of all 
designation resolutions to the Economic Development Department. 

5. CERTIFICATE OF APPROPRIATENESS FOR LANDMARK SITES:  



 

 

After the Planning Commission’s approval of a designation resolution and prior to 
construction, landmark sites may be granted a certificate of appropriateness only if the 
following conditions are satisfied: 

1. Substantial investment is made to upgrade the property and enhance its historic 
significance. 

2. Any renovation maintains or enhances the historic, architectural and aesthetic 
features of the property. 

3. The Planning Commission may impose such other conditions for granting a 
certificate of appropriateness as it deems necessary to protect the character of 
the landmark site. 

6. CONSTRUCTION UPON A LANDMARK SITE:  

Any construction upon a landmark site that materially changes the exterior appearance 
of, adds to, reconstructs, or alters a landmark site shall require a certificate of 
appropriateness from the Planning Commission. Applications for such permits shall be 
made to the Historic Preservation Commission who shall recommend the granting or 
denial of the certificate to the Planning Commission. The Planning Commission shall 
have final authority to grant or deny a permit to construct that is consistent with 
standards set forth herein. A certificate of appropriateness shall be required for 
alterations such as but not limited to: 

a) Any construction that requires a building permit 
b) Removal and replacement or alteration of architectural detailing, such as porch 

columns, railing, window moldings, cornices and siding; 
c) Relocation of a structure or object on the same site or to another site; 
d) Construction of additions or decks;  
e) Alteration or construction of accessory structures, such as garages, carports, 

sheds, accessory dwelling units, etc.; 
f) Alteration of windows and doors, including replacement or changes in 

fenestration patterns; 
g) Construction or alteration of porches; 
h) Masonry work, including, but not limited to, tuckpointing, sandblasting and 

chemical cleaning; 
i) Construction or alteration of site features including, but not limited to, fencing, 

walls, paving and grading; 
j) Installation or alteration of any exterior sign;  
k) Any demolition;  
l) Change, addition of, or removal of exterior paint; and 
m) New construction.  

7. DEMOLITION PROHIBITED:  

No structure of building within a landmark site designation shall be demolished or 
removed unless the structure poses an immediate hazard to human health and safety. 



 

 

An owner’s application for landmark site designation includes the owner’s (1) 
acknowledgement of and agreement to construction limitations and demolition 
prohibitions on the site, (2) waiver of construction and demolition rights the owner might 
otherwise have, and (3) release of claims against Tooele City and its officers, agents, 
boards, and employees. The landmark site application form shall expressly state this 
owner acknowledgement, agreement, and waiver, with the location for the owner’s 
signature.  

8. REMEDY FOR VIOLATION: 

Application for, assistance with, and use of grant funding for landmark sites shall be 
conditioned upon the Owner’s agreement to comply with the provisions of this Chapter.  
Persons who violate this ordinance through unapproved demolition, construction, or 
modifications to landmark sites shall be required to correct or remedy improper 
construction and to restore the landmark site to the former, historic condition.  

 

 

 

 

 

References: 

Areas of state code with mentions to Landmark sites or historic preservation:  

• https://le.utah.gov/xcode/Title10/Chapter9A/10-9a-S534.html  

• https://le.utah.gov/xcode/Title10/Chapter9A/10-9a-S503.html?v=C10-9a-
S503_2019051420190514  

Cities where code was referenced: 

• St George: https://stgeorge.municipal.codes/Code/10-13E-3  

• Ogden: https://codelibrary.amlegal.com/codes/ogdencityut/latest/ogdencity_ut/0-
0-0-24957#JD_17-2-2  

• Provo: https://provo.municipal.codes/Code/16.05.040  

• Salt Lake City: https://www.slc.gov/boards/boards-commissions/historic-
landmark-commission/  

 

https://le.utah.gov/xcode/Title10/Chapter9A/10-9a-S534.html
https://le.utah.gov/xcode/Title10/Chapter9A/10-9a-S503.html?v=C10-9a-S503_2019051420190514
https://le.utah.gov/xcode/Title10/Chapter9A/10-9a-S503.html?v=C10-9a-S503_2019051420190514
https://stgeorge.municipal.codes/Code/10-13E-3
https://codelibrary.amlegal.com/codes/ogdencityut/latest/ogdencity_ut/0-0-0-24957#JD_17-2-2
https://codelibrary.amlegal.com/codes/ogdencityut/latest/ogdencity_ut/0-0-0-24957#JD_17-2-2
https://provo.municipal.codes/Code/16.05.040
https://www.slc.gov/boards/boards-commissions/historic-landmark-commission/
https://www.slc.gov/boards/boards-commissions/historic-landmark-commission/


 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Exhibit B 

 

October 18, 2023, City Council 

Public Work Meeting Minutes 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

Page | 1  
 

Recorder’s Office 
 

Tooele City Council and the Tooele City Redevelopment Agency  

Work Meeting Minutes 

 

Date: Wednesday, October 18, 2023 

Time: 5:30 p.m. 

Place: Tooele City Hall, Council Chambers 

90 North Main Street, Tooele, Utah 

 

City Council Members Present: 

Maresa Manzione  

David McCall 

Ed Hansen 

Tony Graf 

Justin Brady 

 

City Employees Present: 

Mayor Debbie Winn 

Adrian Day, Police Department Chief 

Michelle Pitt, City Recorder 

Roger Baker, City Attorney 

Jared Stewart, Economic Development Director  

Andrew Aagard, Community Development Director  

Darwin Cook, Parks and Recreation Director 

Paul Hansen, City Engineer  

Shannon Wimmer, Finance Director  

Jamie Grandpre, Public Works Director 

 

Minutes prepared by Katherin Yei 

 

1. Open City Council Meeting 

Chairman Brady called the meeting to order at 5:30 p.m. 

 

2. Roll Call 

Maresa Manzione, Present  

David McCall, Present  

Tony Graf, Present  

Ed Hansen, Present  

Justin Brady, Present 

  

3. Mayor’s Report 

Mayor Winn reported on the following: 

The Mayor attended an essay contest for youth who had written about the first amendment. The 

Mayor has invited those youth to present those at a later time for the City Council. Last Saturday, 

the fire department staff held a ground breaking for fire station #3.  

 



 

Page | 2  
 

Recorder’s Office 
 

4. Council Member’s Report 

The Council Members reported on the events they attended during the week.  

 

5. Discussion Items 
 

A. J. Fisher Companies Presentation on Missing-Middle Housing Opportunities 

Presented by Roger Baker, City Attorney, and J. Fisher Companies 

 

Mr. Baker introduced the concept of missing-middle housing. There are 20-acres of undeveloped 

land on Rogers Street that the Council may consider for a residential development project. Mr. 

Baker introduced J. Fisher Companies.  

 

Mr. Jake Wood is a partner with J. Fisher Companies. The company creates housing that varies 

from single-family to multi-housing homes. They have public-private partnerships creating 

affordable housing.  

 

The City Council asked the following questions: 

How are they able to up keep the properties?  

How does the company mange and navigate a high interest? 

How does the company manage the design standards within the Cities? 

How long are you keeping tenants?  

How does the company handle the selection process? 

When the projects are built, do you see a decrease the value in surrounding properties?  

What would the City’s investment be into this project? 

Is 20-acre average size for these projects? 

 

Mr. Wood addressed the Council’s questions. The company would like to keep their investment 

beautiful. They have a mission driven component, but they are a for-profit company. They will 

be able to attract high quality clients in an affordable unit. As a company they put capital away 

for improvements. When they look at the high interest today, there is a high impact. It affects the 

cash-flow and narrowing power. The company has propriety relationships with companies and 

companies to help close the gap on the interest. The company receives a weekly on-site report 

with a 100% fill rate and a waiting list. J. Fisher tends to put amenities to create an ecosystem 

that is beneficial to the company and the community. They want to build to a high quality and 

standard. They work with architects that are mindful of the big picture. The company does 

follow fair housing guidelines, income threshold for maximum and minimum, and criminal 

background. For the company personally, they see an increase in value. They hope this helps the 

housing market. Collaboration is great to create these projects. They want the benefit out way the 

contribution. 20-acres allows the opportunity for different housing types and be a multi-phase 

project.  

 

Mr. Baker addressed the Council. That investment would be a mix of contributions from all 

parties involved. It would be what the Council felt was appropriate. The Residential Special 

District has been enacted by the City that allows for a unique project. Traditional zoning is 



 

Page | 3  
 

Recorder’s Office 
 

designed to isolate and separate uses. When being able to include a mix of income and housing 

types, you create great projects and communities.  

 

B. West Utah Avenue Easement Vacation 

Presented by Paul Hansen, City Engineer 

 

Mr. Hansen presented the request from the applicant of a vacation of right-of-way 

located between 1100 West and U.P.R.R. This is not just a vacation of the easement. Staff is 

recommending to vacate the right-of-way from approximately 120-feet to 84-feet while retaining 

any property vacated for utilities and the easement for flooding and drainage. This will allow 

two-lanes of travel and a center lane median.  

 

The City Council would like to see this move forward.  

 

C. Landmark Site Designation Process for the Preservation of Significant Historic 

Properties 

Presented by Jared Stewart, Economic Development Director 

 

Mr. Stewart presented a landmark site designation for the preservation of significant historic 

properties. There are properties within the City that are unique and have historical significance. 

Staff did look at other Cities as they put together the proposal. There is a table of qualifications 

that properties have to meet in order to be considered. The Planning Commission will have 

authority to approve these preservations. Once a site is a land mark, it cannot be demolished 

unless for a safety risk or hazard.  

 

The City Council asked the following questions: 

Are a majority of the properties on Main Street? 

Can the inside use of the buildings still change? 

 

Mr. Stewart addressed the Council. A majority of the properties would be on Main Street. This 

primarily relates to the exterior of the building.  

 

The City Council does like the idea of Planning Commission handling these items.  

 

D. Ordinance 2023-41 An Ordinance of Tooele City Amending Tooele City Code Section 

10-3-30 Regarding the Removal of Illegally Parked Cars 

Presented by Police Chief Adrian Day 

 

Chief Day presented an amendment to the removal of illegally parked cars. This does make 

registered owners responsible. This defines what danger and obstruction is, giving police 

authority to remove those vehicles. This item was discussed during the work meeting.  

 

The City Council asked the following questions: 

In the winter time, can the officers have vehicles towed?  

 



 

Page | 4  
 

Recorder’s Office 
 

Chief Day addressed the Council. Officers can site vehicles that are on the streets. It is a safety 

issue for having any illegally parked vehicles on the road. It is under interpretation of the 

officers.   

 

E. Resolution 2023-91 A Resolution of the Tooele City Council Amending the Tooele City 

Fee Schedule to Add a Bulk Culinary Water Fee for Limited Commercial Construction 

Presented by Jamie Grandpre, Public Works Director 

 

Mr. Grandpre presented a resolution to amend the fee schedule to add a bulk culinary water fee. 

This is in regards to commercial construction. The policy does address the high quantity versus 

low. It is metered water with a deposit of $1500 and a daily rental amount of $75 per day. The 

water usage cost is $6 per 1000 gallons of bulk water. This is a limited basis for commercial 

construction companies.  

 

The City Council asked the following questions:  

How much does it cost to truck the water in for projects? 

 

Mr. Grandpre addressed the Council. There is a max of gallons per day and max meter rental. 

Contractors say it can cost $50,000-$60,000 per day.  

 

Mr. Baker addressed the Council. Staff has worked hard to draft a policy that will limit the 

culinary water use but steer the use towards businesses that are providing assets to the 

community.  

 

6. Closed Meeting - Litigation, Property Acquisition, and/or Personnel 

There is no closed meeting.  

 

7. Adjourn 

Chairman Brady adjourned the meeting at 6:56 p.m.  

 

 

The content of the minutes is not intended, nor are they submitted, as a verbatim transcription of 

the meeting. These minutes are a brief overview of what occurred at the meeting.  

 

Approved this 1st day of November, 2023 

 

_____________________________________________  

Justin Brady, City Council Chair 
 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Exhibit C 

 

Planning Commission Minutes  

(1/10/24 Draft Minutes) 

 

 

 

 

 



 

Page | 1  
 

Community Development Department 
 

Tooele City Planning Commission 

Business Meeting Minutes 

 

Date: Wednesday, January 10, 2024 

Time: 7:00 p.m. 

Place: Tooele City Hall Council Chambers 

90 North Main Street, Tooele Utah 

 

Commission Members Present: 

Tyson Hamilton 

Melanie Hammer 

Chris Sloan 

Weston Jensen 

Melodi Gochis 

Alison Dunn  

Jon Proctor  

Kelly Anderson 

 

Commission Members Excused: 

Matt Robinson 

 

City Council Members Present:  

Maresa Manzione 

Ed Hansen 

 

City Employees Present: 

Andrew Aagard, City Development Director  

Jared Hall, City Planner  

Paul Hansen, City Engineer  

Roger Baker, City Attorney  

Jared Stewart, Economic Development Director  

 

Minutes prepared by Katherin Yei 

 

Chairman Hamilton called the meeting to order at 7:05 p.m.  

 

1.Pledge of Allegiance 

The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Chairman Hamilton.   

 

2. Roll Call 

Melanie Hammer, Present 

Jon Proctor, Present 

Chris Sloan, Present 

Tyson Hamilton, Present  

Weston Jensen, Present 



 

Page | 2  
 

Community Development Department 
 

Alison Dunn, Present  

Matt Robinson, Excused 

Kelly Anderson, Excused 

 

3. Public Hearing and Recommendation, continued from December 13, 2023 – 

Consideration of Proposed Ordinance 2023-39, amending Tooele City Code, Chapter 2-9 

regarding the Landmark Site Designation Process for the Preservation of Significant 

Historic Properties.  

Presented by Jared Stewart, Economic Development Director  

 

Mr. Stewart presented an amendment to Tooele City code, chapter 2-9 regarding the landmarks 

site designation. This item was discussed during the December 13, 2023 meeting. The changes to 

the proposed ordinance discussed during the last meeting include the age of the structure being 

75 years old, the property owner will need to submit to be considered, and clarified what kind of 

property could be considered. To be considered, the property must be submitted and go through 

the application process.  

 

The public hearing was opened. No one came forward. The public hearing was closed.  

 

Commissioner Sloan motioned to forward a positive recommendation of Ordinance 2023-

39, amending Tooele City Code, Chapter 2-9 regarding the Landmark Site Designation 

Process for the Preservation of Significant Historic Properties based on the findings and 

subject to the conditions listed in the staff report. Commissioner Hammer seconded the 

motion. The vote was as follows: Commissioner Hammer, “Aye”, Commissioner Proctor, “Aye”, 

Commissioner Sloan, “Aye”, Chairman Hamilton, “Aye”, Commissioner Jensen, “Aye”, and 

Commissioner Dunn, “Aye”. The motion passed. 

 

4. Public Hearing and Decision – Geofortis Utah, LLC requests a Conditional Use Permit 

for the installation of a new 99.5-foot-tall silo on the 6.88-acre processing plant site located 

at 1345 K Avenue in the Industrial zoning district 

Presented by Jared Hall, City Planner 

 

Mr. Hall presented a Conditional Use Permit for a 99.5-foot-tall silo on the property located at 

1345 K Avenue in the Industrial Zoning. It is intended to add to storage capacity for Geofortis 

Utah, LLC. Anything over 75-feet does require a Conditional Use Permit. Engineering will be 

reviewing the water drainage on the property during the site plan approval. Staff is 

recommending approval.   

 

The public hearing was opened. No one came forward. The public hearing was closed. 

 

Commissioner Hammer motioned to approve a Conditional Use Permit for the installation 

of a new 99.5-foot-tall silo on the 6.88-acre processing plant site located at 1345 K Avenue 

in the Industrial zoning district based on the findings and subject to the conditions listed in 

the staff report. Commissioner Dunn seconded the motion. The vote was as follows: 

Commissioner Hammer, “Aye”, Commissioner Proctor, “Aye”, Commissioner Sloan, “Aye”, 



 

Page | 3  
 

Community Development Department 
 

Chairman Hamilton, “Aye”, Commissioner Jensen, “Aye”, and Commissioner Dunn, “Aye”. The 

motion passed. 

 

Commissioner Anderson arrived at this time.   

 

5. Public Hearing and Decision – Chad Griffith representing Hoot Owl, LLC requests a 

Conditional Use Permit to allow the installation of a new cellular monopole on property 

located at approximately 650 North 700 West in the Industrial zoning district 

Presented by Jared Hall, City Planner 

 

Mr. Hall presented a Conditional Use Permit for the Hoot Owl, LLC installation of a cellular 

monopole on the property located 650 North 700 West. It is a permitted use for the Industrial 

zoning. The applicant needs a Conditional Use Permit for the height of the tower. This site will 

still go through the site approval process. With the conditionals listed in the report, staff is 

recommending approval.  

 

The Planning Commission asked the following questions: 

Will this prohibit a developer from developing in nearby areas? 

 

Mr. Hall addressed the Commission’s questions. Where the cell tower will be placed, it is far 

enough away it won’t prohibit development.  

 

The public hearing was opened. No one came forward. The public hearing was closed.  

 

An email was received from Richard Marin. It read as the following: “I live about half a football 

field away from where the cell tower would be built, and people in my community were eagerly 

anticipating a park in that location. What happened to those plans? I'm fine with a cell tower 

being built there, but is there still a way to proceed with the park?” 

 

An email was received from Disa Ests. It read as the following: “The tower that is currently on 

the property in question is very loud. Will a permanent tower be as loud or louder than the 

temporary one? Also, we were told there would be a park on this property. Will this new benefit 

this process?” 

 

Mr. Baker addressed the public comments. Staff and the neighboring residential development 

have been involved in the discussion of a park in this area. The temporary tower is powered by a 

generator. A utility easement will be placed for the permanent tower.  

 

Commissioner Proctor motioned to approve the Conditional Use Permit to allow the 

installation of a new cellular monopole on property located at approximately 650 North 700 

West in the Industrial zoning district based on the findings and subject to the conditions 

listed in the staff report. Commissioner Jensen seconded the motion. The vote was as follows: 

Commissioner Hammer, “Aye”, Commissioner Proctor, “Aye”, Commissioner Sloan, “Aye”, 

Chairman Hamilton, “Aye”, Commissioner Anderson, “Aye”, Commissioner Jensen, “Aye”, and 

Commissioner Dunn, “Aye”. The motion passed. 



 

Page | 4  
 

Community Development Department 
 

 

6. Public Hearing and Decision – Chad Griffith, representing Hoot Owl, LLC requests a 

Conditional Use Permit to allow the installation of a new cellular monopole on property 

located at approximately 2400 North 200 East in the General Commercial zoning district. 

Presented by Jared Hall, City Planner 

 

Mr. Hall presented a Conditional Use Permit for the Hoot Owl, LLC cellular monopole located 

on northeast of the developing high school property. The site plan is under review including 

improvement to the property.  

 

The Planning Commission asked the following questions: 

Will this prohibit a developer from developing in nearby areas? 

 

Mr. Hall addressed the Commission’s questions. With the setbacks and rights-of-way, it is far 

enough away it won’t prohibit development.  

 

The public hearing was opened. No one came forward. The public hearing was closed. 

 

Mr. Baker addressed the Commission. This is not a site plan review, however, by approving the 

Conditional Use Permit, this does not approve access onto 2400 north.  

 

Commissioner Jensen motioned to approve the Conditional Use Permit to allow the 

installation of a new cellular monopole on property located at approximately 2400 North 

200 East in the General Commercial zoning district based on the findings and subject to 

the conditions listed in the staff report. Commissioner Hammer seconded the motion. The vote 

was as follows: Commissioner Hammer, “Aye”, Commissioner Proctor, “Aye”, Commissioner 

Sloan, “Aye”, Chairman Hamilton, “Aye”, Commissioner Anderson, “Aye”, Commissioner 

Jensen, “Aye”, and Commissioner Dunn, “Aye”. The motion passed. 

 

7. Review and Recommendation – Consideration of a request by Matthew Scott, 

representing Richmond American Homes to amend Lots 237, 238, and 239 of the Drumore 

at Overlake Phase 2 plat located at 18 E. Broxburn Way, 12 E. Broxburn Way, and 1532 N. 

Baen Way in the R1-7 zoning district  

Presented by Jared Hall, City Planner 

 

Mr. Hall presented a Platt Amendment for the existing property Drumore at Overlake Phase 2 

located at 18 E. Broxburn Way, 12 E. Broxburn Way, and 1532 N. Baen Way. The change for lot 

237 creates a more buildable lot by increasing the right-of-way. Staff is recommending approval.  

 

Commissioner Proctor motioned to forward a positive recommendation of a request by 

Matthew Scott, representing Richmond American Homes to amend Lots 237, 238, and 239 

of the Drumore at Overlake Phase 2 plat located at 18 E. Broxburn Way, 12 E. Broxburn 

Way, and 1532 N. Baen Way in the R1-7 zoning district based on the findings and subject 

to the conditions listed in the staff report. Commissioner Dunn seconded the motion. The vote 

was as follows: Commissioner Hammer, “Aye”, Commissioner Proctor, “Aye”, Commissioner 



 

Page | 5  
 

Community Development Department 
 

Sloan, “Aye”, Chairman Hamilton, “Aye”, Commissioner Anderson, “Aye”, Commissioner 

Jensen, “Aye”, and Commissioner Dunn, “Aye”. The motion passed. 

 

8. Review and Decision, continued from July 26, 2023 – Consideration of a request by 

Leitner-Poma to utilize an alternative material for a parking surface on their project 

located at approximately 600 South Tooele Boulevard in the TCBP zoning district .  

Presented by Jared Hall, City Planner 

 

Mr. Hall presented a request by Leitner-Poma to use alternative material for the parking surface.  

This was discussed during the meeting on July 26, 2023. The engineer of the project has been in 

contact and discussion with the City Engineer. Their overflow parking is the only designated 

areas for the alternative materials.  

 

The Planning Commission asked the following questions: 

Does the fire department have any concerns?   

Will this material effect the nearby well?  

Is the primary parking adequate? 

 

Mr. Hansen addressed the Commission’s questions. The fire loop, central areas, and primary 

parking will be paved. The over flow area will be sued mostly for trailers. Staff is satisfied there 

will not be any issues with the well. The parking is adequate and meets code.  

 

Commissioner Hammer motioned to approve Consideration of a request by Leitner-Poma 

to utilize an alternative material for a parking surface on their project located at 

approximately 600 South Tooele Boulevard in the TCBP zoning district based on the 

findings and subject to the conditions listed in the staff report. Commissioner Jensen 

seconded the motion. The vote was as follows: Commissioner Hammer, “Aye”, Commissioner 

Proctor, “Aye”, Commissioner Sloan, “Aye”, Chairman Hamilton, “Aye”, Commissioner 

Anderson, “Aye”, Commissioner Jensen, “Aye”, and Commissioner Dunn, “Aye”. The motion 

passed. 

 

9. City Council Reports 

Council Member Manzione shared the following information from the City Council Meeting: 

The Council approved board assignments, with Council Member Hansen and Council Member 

Manzione being assigned to the Commission.  The Council approved the Multi-Family 

residential building materials and the annexation plan by removing only the parts that are apart 

of other Cities. They denied the zone change for Markosian Auto but recommended a text 

amendment instead.  

 

10. Business Item – Approve scheduled Planning Commission meetings for 2024.  

Andrew Aagard, Community Development Director presenting. 

 

Mr. Aagard presented the dates and days for the 2024 Planning Commission meetings.  

 



 

Page | 6  
 

Community Development Department 
 

Commissioner Sloan motioned to approve the calendar as presented. Commissioner Proctor 

seconded the motion. The vote was as follows: Commissioner Hammer, “Aye”, Commissioner 

Proctor, “Aye”, Commissioner Sloan, “Aye”, Chairman Hamilton, “Aye”, Commissioner 

Anderson, “Aye”, Commissioner Jensen, “Aye”, and Commissioner Dunn, “Aye”. The motion 

passed. 

 

11. Review and Approval – Planning Commission Minutes for the meeting held on 

December 13, 2023. 

There are no changes to the minutes.  

 

Commissioner Hammer motioned to approve the minutes. Commissioner Jensen seconded 

the motion. The vote was as follows: Commissioner Hammer, “Aye”, Commissioner Proctor, 

“Aye”, Commissioner Sloan, “Aye”, Chairman Hamilton, “Aye”, Commissioner Anderson 

abstained, Commissioner Jensen, “Aye”, and Commissioner Dunn, “Aye”. The motion passed. 

 

12. Adjourn 

Chairman Hamilton adjourned the meeting at 7:39 p.m.  

 

 

 

The content of the minutes is not intended, nor are they submitted, as a verbatim transcription  

of the meeting. These minutes are a brief overview of what occurred at the meeting.  

 

Approved this ____ day of January, 2024 

 

 

_____________________________________________ 

Tyson Hamilton, Tooele City Planning Commission Chair 

 

 

 



 

 
Drumore at Overlake  App. # P23-786 
Phase 2, Plat Amendment 1  

Community Development Department 
 

STAFF REPORT 
January 5, 2024

 
To: Tooele City Planning Commission 

Business Date:  January 10, 2024 
 
From: Planning Division 

Community Development Department 
 
Prepared By: Jared Hall, City Planner / Zoning Administrator 
 
 
Re: Kelly White – Minor Subdivision Approval Request 

Application No.: P23-786 
Applicants: Matthew Scott, Richmond American Homes 
Project Location: 18 E. Broxburn Way, 12 E. Broxburn Way, and 1532 N. Baen Way  
Zoning: R1-7, Single-Famiy Residnetial  
Acreage: Lots 237, 238, and 239 - .57 acres total (24,983 ft2) 
Request: Amend Drumore at Overlake, Phase 2 Plat 

 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
This application is a request for approval to amend the Drumore at Overlake, Phase 2 plat. Specifically, to 
slightly adjust the sizes of Lots 237, 238, and 239 with respect to each other.  
  
ANALYSIS 
 
General Plan and Zoning.  The Land Use Map of the General Plan designates the property involved in the 
subdivision as Medium Density Residential, and the properties are located in the R1-7 zoning district. The 
proposed amendment to adjust the relative sizes of the lots does not impact the zoning or land use 
designations. 
 
Subdivision Layout.  The proposed amendment will slightly adjust lot lines to effectively transfer 523 ft2 
from the largest (Lot 237) to Lots 238 and 239. No real change in configuration results from the 
amendment. Please see the table below.  
 

 Lot 237 Lot 238 Lot 239 
Existing 10,642 7,180 7,162 
Proposed Amended 10,119 7,207 7,657 

 
Development Considerations & Plans.  The amendment has been requested to make the final lots more 
buildable. No complications for easements or utility provision arise from the proposed amendment. The 
proposed amended plat is attached for your review. 
 
Criteria for Approval.  The procedure for approval or denial of a request to amend a plat, as well as the 
information required to be submitted for review as a complete application is found in Sections 7-19-10 
and 11 of the Tooele City Code. 



 

 
Drumore at Overlake  App. # P23-786 
Phase 2, Plat Amendment 2  

The proposed amendment meets these criteria, and has therefore been brought for preliminary and final 
plat approval as an amended plat.  
  
REVIEWS 
 
Planning Division. The Planning Division has completed their review of the proposed plat amendment 
and have found it to comply with zoning and subdivision requirements. Planning Division recommends 
approval.  
 
Engineering Division. The City Engineer has completed their review of the proposed Minor Subdivision 
and have found it to comply. The City Engineer recommends approval.  
 
Fire Department. The Fire Department has completed their review of the proposed plat amendment and 
recommends approval.  
 
Public Works Department. The Public Works Department has completed their review of the proposed plat 
amendment and recommends approval.  
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
 
Staff recommends APPROVAL of application number P23-786, the request by Richmond American 
Homes to amend the plat of Phase 2 of the Drumore at Overlake Subdivision, subject to the following 
conditions: 
 

1. The amended plat shall meet all requirements of the Tooele City Subdivision regulations 
prior to recordation. 
 

2. The plat shall provide appropriate public utility easements and meet all other 
requirements of the Tooele City Engineering Division.  

 
This recommendation is based on the following findings: 
 

1. The proposed plat amendment meets the intent, goals, and objectives of the Tooele City 
General Plan. 
 

2. The proposed plat amendment meets the requirements and provisions of the Tooele City 
Code and the R1-7 Zone. 

 
3. The proposed plat amendment will not be deleterious to the health, safety, and general 

welfare of the general public nor the residents of adjacent properties. 
 

MODEL MOTIONS  
 
Sample Motion for a Positive Recommendation – “I move we forward a recommendation of APPROVAL 
to the City Council for application number 23-786, the request by Richmond American Homes to amend 
the plat of Phase 2 of the Drumore at Overlake Subdivision, based on the findings and subject to the 
conditions listed in the Staff Report dated January 5, 2024:” 
 

1. List any additional findings and conditions 
 
 



 

 
Drumore at Overlake  App. # P23-786 
Phase 2, Plat Amendment 3  

Sample Motion for a Negative Recommendation – “I move we forward a recommendation of DENIAL to 
the City Council for application number 23-786, the request by Richmond American Homes to amend the 
plat of Phase 2 of the Drumore at Overlake Subdivision, based on the findings: 
 

1. List any findings 
       

 
 

 
 

 



 

 

EXHIBIT A 
 

MAPPING PERTINENT TO THE PROPOSED PLAT AMENDMENT,  
DRUMORE AT OVERLAKE PHASE 2 

 
 

 
 

  
LI 

RR-1 

MR-8 

Lots 237, 238, and 239 - Aerial 



 

 

EXHIBIT B 
 

PROPOSED PLAT AMENDMENT, APPLICANT SUBMITTED MATERIALS 
 
 







LOT 236
DRUMORE AT OVERLAKE

PHASE 2 SUBDIVISION

LOT 237

LOT 238

LOT 239

LOT 240
DRUMORE AT OVERLAKE

PHASE 2 SUBDIVISION

LOT 216
DRUMORE AT OVERLAKE

PHASE 2 SUBDIVISION

LOT 215
DRUMORE AT

OVERLAKE
PHASE 2

SUBDIVISION

LOT 231
DRUMORE AT OVERLAKE

PHASE 2 SUBDIVISION

LOT 230
DRUMORE AT

OVERLAKE
PHASE 2

SUBDIVISION

LOT 232
DRUMORE AT OVERLAKE

PHASE 2 SUBDIVISION

BROXBURN WAY

BONNYBRID
GE LA

NE

7,214 SQ.FT.
0.166 ACRE

7,664 SQ. FT.
0.176 ACRE

10,112 SQ. FT.
0.232 ACRE

S 
0°

25
'09

" E
  3

0.0
0'

30
.00

'30.
00'

30.
00'

30.
00'

30.
00'30.00'

30.00'

30.00'

30.00'

30.
00'

30.
00'

S 
12

°4
7'

14
" W

  1
09

.3
3'

S 89°34'51" W  96.08'

S 46°04'14" E  49.85'

N 43
°55

'46
" E

  71
.00

'

N 3
3°

47
'01

" E
  7

3.4
3'

Δ=23°05'49"
R=130.00'L=52.41'CB=S 65°39'52" E

C=52.05'

Δ=8°02'44"
R=130.00'
L=18.25'
CB=S 50°05'35" E
C=18.24'

N 43
°5

5'4
6" 

E  8
3.5

0'

Δ=31°08'33"
R=130.00'
L=70.66'
CB=S 61°38'30" E
C=69.79'

N 46°04'14" W  105.42'

Δ=90°00'00"
R=29.50'
L=46.34'
CB=N 88°55'46" E
C=41.72'

41.
50'

42.
00'

81.48'

23.94'

S 46°04'14" E  110.48'

SOUTHWEST CORNER OF LOT 237,
DRUMORE AT OVERLAKE PHASE 2

FOUND PLUG ON
PROPERTY LINE
PROJECTION

FOUND REBAR & CAP STAMPED
"EDM" AT PROPERTY CORNER

FOUND PLUG ON
LOT LINE PROJECTION

FOUND PLUG ON LOT LINE
PROJECTION

FOUND PLUG ON LOT
LINE PROJECTION

POINT OF BEGINNING

FOUND MONUMENT AT
PLATTED POSITION

N 43
°55

'46
" E

  20
2.0

0'

S 46°04'14" E  109.35'

Δ=44°20'56"
R=100.00'
L=77.40'
CB=S 68°14'41" E
C=75.49'

N 89°34'51" E  93.90'

Δ=90°00'00"
R=29.00'
L=45.55'
CB=N 1°04'14" W
C=41.01'

LOT 235
DRUMORE AT

OVERLAKE
PHASE 2

SUBDIVISION

AIDEN WAY

FOUND MONUMENT AT
PLATTED POSITION

FOUND MONUMENT AT
PLATTED POSITION

FOUND PLUG ALONG
EXCEPTION OF LOT LINE

(PUBLIC
)

(PUBLIC)

TOOELE CITY
02-127-0-0007

ENTRY NO. 195517

(PUBLIC)

Δ=13°08'06"
R=130.00'
L=29.80'
CB=N 83°46'49" W
C=29.74'

10.0' P.U.E.

10
.0'

 P
.U

.E
.

10
.0'

 P
.U

.E
.

5.0' P.U.E.

10.
0' P

.U.E.

FOUND MONUMENT AT
PLATTED  POSITION

FOUND MONUMENT AT
PLATTED POSITION

FOUND MONUMENT AT
PLATTED POSITION

Δ=45°39'04"
R=100.00'
L=79.68'
CB=N 66°45'19" E
C=77.59'

N 43°55'46" E  5.22'

BASIS OF BEARING  N
 43

°55
'46

" E
  45

5.4
9'

LEGEND

RIGHT OF WAY LINE

LOT LINE

PROPERTY LINE

MONUMENT LINE

ADJOINING LOT LINE

ALL OF LOTS 237, 238, AND 239 DRUMORE OVERLAKE PHASE 2 SUBDIVISION, AS RECORDED WITH THE OFFICE OF THE TOOELE COUNTY RECORDER, SAID
COMBINED  LOTS BEING DESCRIBED MORE PARTICULARLY AS FOLLOWS:

BEGINNING AT THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF SAID LOT 237, AND RUNNING THENCE ALONG THE PERIMETER OF SAID LOTS THE FOLLOWING EIGHT
COURSES: 1) NORTH 46°04'14" WEST 105.42 FEET TO A POINT OF CURVATURE, 2) NORTHWESTERLY ALONG THE ARC OF A 29.00 FOOT CURVE TO THE
RIGHT THROUGH A CENTRAL ANGLE OF 90°00'00" A DISTANCE 45.55 FEET, CHORD BEARS NORTH 01°04'14" WEST 41.01 FEET, 3) NORTH 43°55'46" EAST
83.50 FEET TO A POINT OF CURVATURE, 4) NORTHEASTERLY ALONG THE ARC OF A 29.50 FOOT RADIUS CURVE TO THE RIGHT THROUGH A CENTRAL
ANGLE OF 90°00'00", A  DISTANCE OF 46.34 FEET, CHORD BEARS NORTH 88°55'46" EAST 41.72 FEET, 5) SOUTH 46°04'14" EAST 49.85 FEET TO A POINT OF
CURVATURE, 6) SOUTHEASTERLY ALONG THE ARC OF A 130.00 FOOT RADIUS CURVE TO THE LEFT THROUGH A CENTRAL ANGLE OF 31°08'33", A DISTANCE
OF 70.66 FEET, CHORD BEARS SOUTH 61°38'30" EAST 69.79 FEET, 7) SOUTH 12°47'14" WEST 109.33 FEET, 8) SOUTH 89°34'51" WEST 96.08 FEET TO THE
POINT OF BEGINNING.

CONTAINS: 24,990 SQUARE FEET OR 0.574 ACRES (3 LOTS)

DRUMORE AT OVERLAKE PHASE 2 AMENDED

DRUMORE AT OVERLAKE PHASE 2 AMENDED

LOCATED IN THE NORTHWEST AND NORTHEAST QUARTER OF SECTION 16,
TOWNSHIP 3 SOUTH, RANGE 4 WEST,

SALT LAKE BASE AND MERIDIAN, TOOELE CITY, TOOELE COUNTY,
STATE OF UTAH

JULY 19, 2023

LOCATED IN THE NORTHWEST AND NORTHEAST QUARTER OF SECTION 16,
TOWNSHIP 3 SOUTH, RANGE 4 WEST,

SALT LAKE BASE AND MERIDIAN, TOOELE CITY, TOOELE COUNTY,
STATE OF UTAH

AMENDING LOTS 237, 238 & 239

AMENDING LOTS 237, 238 & 239

NORTH TOOELE SPECIAL SERVICE DISTRICT

CHAIR, NORTH TOOELE CITY SPECIAL SERVICE DISTRICT

APPROVED THIS _________________ DAY OF _____________________ A.D., 20____,
BY THE NORTH TOOELE CITY SERVICE DISTRICT.

TOOELE COUNTY SURVEYOR

TOOELE CITY ENGINEER DATE

REVIEWED THIS ___________ DAY OF ___________________________________, 20__________
REVIEWED BY THE TOOELE COUNTY SURVEYOR'S OFFICE. RECORD OF SURVEY
NUMBER__________________.

TOOELE COUNTY TREASURER

TOOELE COUNTY TREASURER DATE

APPROVED THIS _________________ DAY OF _____________________ A.D., 20_______ BY THE
TOOELE COUNTY TREASURER.

TOOLELE CITY ATTORNEY

TOOELE CITY ATTORNEY DATE

APPROVED AS TO FORM ON THIS ____________ DAY OF ____________________________________, 20_______.

TOOELE CITY ENGINEER

TOOELE CITY ENGINEER DATE

APPROVED AS TO FORM THIS _________________ DAY OF _____________________ A.D., 20____

DEVELOPER

RICHMOND AMERICAN HOMES OF UTAH, INC
849 W LEVOY DRIVE

TAYLORSVILLE, UTAH
801-545-5169

DRUMORE AT OVERLAKE PHASE 2 AMENDED

SURVEYOR'S CERTIFICATE

OWNER'S DEDICATION

BOUNDARY DESCRIPTION

I, DAVID B. DRAPER DO HEREBY CERTIFY THAT I AM A REGISTERED PROFESSIONAL LAND SURVEYOR, AND THAT I HOLD LICENSE NO. 6861599, IN
ACCORDANCE WITH TITLE 58, CHAPTER 22 OF THE PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERS AND LAND SURVEYORS ACT;  I FURTHER CERTIFY THAT BY AUTHORITY OF
THE OWNERS, I HAVE MADE A SURVEY OF THE TRACT OF LAND SHOWN ON THIS PLAT AND DESCRIBED BELOW, AND HAVE SUBDIVIDED SAID TRACT OF
LAND INTO LOTS AND STREETS HEREAFTER TO BE KNOWN AS:

AND THAT THE SAME HAS BEEN CORRECTLY SURVEYED AND STAKED ON THE GROUND AS SHOWN ON THIS PLAT.

DAVID B. DRAPER,
L.S. LICENSE NO. 6861599

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS THAT ________, THE ______ UNDERSIGNED OWNER(    ) OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED TRACT OF LAND, AND HEREBY,
CAUSE SAME TO BE SUBDIVIDED INTO LOTS, AND EASEMENTS TO BE HEREAFTER KNOWN AS THE:

AND DO HEREBY DEDICATE FOR PERPETUAL USE OF THE PUBLIC ALL ROADS AND OTHER AREAS SHOWN ON THIS PLAT AS INTENDED FOR PUBLIC USE.
THE UNDERSIGNED OWNERS ALSO HEREBY CONVEY TO ANY AND ALL PUBLIC UTILITY COMPANIES A PERPETUAL, NON-EXCLUSIVE EASEMENT OVER THE
PUBLIC UTILITY EASEMENTS SHOWN ON THIS PLAT, THE SAME TO BE USED FOR THE INSTALLATION, MAINTENANCE AND OPERATION OF UTILITY LINES
AND FACILITIES.

RICHMOND AMERICAN HOMES OF UTAH, INC.

AMENDING LOTS 237, 238 & 239

DRUMORE AT OVERLAKE PHASE 2 AMENDED
AMENDING LOTS 237, 238 & 239

PLANNING COMMISSION

PLANNING COMMISSION CHAIRPERSON

APPROVED THIS _________________ DAY OF _____________________ A.D., 20____,
BY THE TOOELE CITY PLANNING COMMISSION.

TOOELE COUNTY RECORDER
RECORD NO. ______________________________.

STATE OF UTAH, COUNTY OF TOOELE, RECORDED AND FILED AT THE REQUEST OF ____________________________________________________________

DATE: _________________________________ TIME: ____________________________ BOOK: __________________________ PAGE: _________________________

FEE $ TOOELE COUNTY RECORDER

HEALTH DEPARTMENT

TOOELE COUNTY HEALTH DEPARTMENT

APPROVED THIS _________________ DAY OF _____________________ A.D., 20____,
BY THE TOOELE COUNTY HEALTH DEPARTMENT.

TOOELE CITY COUNCIL

CHAIRPERSON TOOELE CITY COUNCIL

APPROVED THIS _________________ DAY OF _____________________ A.D., 20____, BY THE TOOELE
CITY COUNCIL.

SCALE: 1" =

NORTH

20'

0 10' 20' 40' 60'

OF

SHEET

1

1
PREPARED BY:

ROCKY MOUNTAIN POWER
1. PURSUANT TO UTAH CODE ANN. SS 54-3-27 THIS PLAT CONVEYS TO THE OWNER(S) OR OPERATORS OF
UTILITY FACILITIES A PUBLIC UTILITY EASEMENT ALONG WITH ALL THE RIGHTS AND DUTIES DESCRIBED
THEREIN.
2. PURSUANT TO UTAH CODE ANN. SS 17-27 A-603(4)(C)(ii) ROCKY MOUNTAIN PWOER ACCEPTS DELIVERY OF
THE PUE AS DESCRIBED IN THIS PLAT AND APPROVES THIS PLAT SOLEY FOR THE PURPOSE OF CONFIRMING
THAT THE PLAT CONTAINS PUBLIC UTILITY EASEMENTS AND APPROXIMATES THE LOCATION OF THE PUBLIC
UTILITY EASEMENTS IN ORDER TO SERVE THIS DEVELOPMENT. THIS APPROVAL DOES NOT AFFECT ANY
RIGHT THAT ROCKY MOUNTAIN POWER HAS UNDER:
(1) A RECORDED EASEMENT OR RIGHT OF WAY
(2) THE LAW APPLICABLE TO PRESCRIPTIVE RIGHTS
(3) TITLE 54, CHAPTER 8A, DAMAGE TO UNDERGROUND UTILITY FACILITIES OR
(4) ANY OTHER PROVISION OF LAW.

APPROVED THIS _______________ DAY OF _____________________________ AD, 20________.

ROCKY MOUNTAIN POWER

BY- ______________________________________________________________

TITLE- ___________________________________________________________

DOMINION ENERGY COMPANY
DOMINION ENERGY APPROVES THIS PLAT SOLELY FOR THE PURPOSE OF CONFIRMING THAT THE PLAT
CONTAINS PUBLIC UTILITY EASEMENTS. DOMINION ENERGY MAY REQUIRE OTHER EASMENTS IN ORDER TO
SERVE THIS DEVELOPMENT. THIS APPROVAL DOES NOT CONSTITUTE ABROGATION OR WAIVER OF ANY
OTHER EXISTING RIGHTS, OBLIGATIONS, OR LIABILITIES PROVIDED BY LAW OR EQUITY. THIS APPROVAL DOES
NOT CONSTITUTE ACCEPTANCE, APPROVAL, OR ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF ANY TERMS CONTAINED IN THE
PLAT, INCLUDING THOSE SET FORTH IN THE OWNERS DEDICATION AND THE NOTES AND DOES NOT
CONSTITUTE A GUARANTEE OF PARTICULAR TERMS OF NATURAL GAS SERVICE. FOR FURTHER INFORMATION
PLEASE CONTACT DOMINION ENERGY'S RIGHT OF WAY DEPARTMENT AT 1-800-366-8532

APPROVED THIS __________________________ DAY OF ______________ A.D. 20______

DOMINION GAS COMPANY

BY- _____________________________________________________

TITLE- ___________________________________________________

______________________________________________________________
NAME:

TITLE:

CORPORATE ACKNOWLEDGMENT
ON THE __________ DAY OF _______________ A.D., 20____, _________________________________ PERSONALLY APPEARED BEFORE ME, THE UNDERSIGNED
NOTARY PUBLIC, IN AND FOR SAID COUNTY OF ________________ IN SAID STATE OF UTAH, WHO AFTER BEING DULY SWORN, ACKNOWLEDGED TO ME
THAT HE/SHE IS THE VICE PRESIDENT OF _____________________________ AND THAT HE/SHE SIGNED THE OWNER'S DEDICATION FREELY AND
VOLUNTARILY FOR AND IN BEHALF OF SAID CORPORATION FOR THE PURPOSES THEREIN MENTIONED.

___________________________________________
NOTARY PUBLIC

___________________________________________
COMMISSION NUMBER

___________________________________________
SIGNATURE

A NOTARY PUBLIC COMMISSIONED IN THE STATE OF UTAH. COMMISSION EXPIRES ________________________________

DATE REVISIONS BY

SUBDIVISION BOUNDARY CORNER,
COPPER PLUG OR REBAR & CAP OR NAIL
& WASHER STAMPED "MCNEIL ENGR"

P.U.E. PUBLIC UTILITY EASEMENT

TOOELE CITY COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT

TOOELE CITY COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DATE

APPROVED AS TO FORM THIS _________________ DAY OF _____________________ A.D., 20_______.

7-21-23

Davidd
New Stamp

Davidd
New Stamp



 

Page | 1  
 

Recorder’s Office 
 

Tooele City Council Business Meeting Minutes 
 

Date: Wednesday, January 3, 2024 
Time: 7:00 p.m. 
Place: Tooele City Hall, Council Chambers 
90 North Main Street, Tooele, Utah 
 
City Council Members Present: 
Ed Hansen 
Maresa Manzione 
Dave McCall 
Justin Brady 
Melodi Gochis 
 
City Employees Present: 
Mayor Debbie Winn 
Adrian Day, Police Department Chief 
Michelle Pitt, City Recorder 
Loretta Herron, Deputy City Recorder  
Roger Baker, City Attorney 
Darwin Cook, Parks and Recreation Director 
Andrew Aagard, Community Development Director  
Paul Hansen, City Engineer  
Jamie Grandpre, Public Works Director  
 
Minutes prepared by Katherin Yei 
 
Chairman Brady called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. 
 
1. Pledge of Allegiance 
The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Chairman Brady.  

 
2. Roll Call  
Maresa Manzione, Present 
Melodi Gochis, Present  
Justin Brady, Present  
Ed Hansen, Present  
Dave McCall, Present  
 
3. Swearing in of New Council Members 
Ms. Pitt swore in Justin Brady, Ed Hansen, and Melodi Gochis to the City Council.  
 
4. Selection of City Council & Redevelopment Agency Chair and Vice Chair Positions for 
2024 
The City Council positions were discussed during the work meeting.  



 

Page | 2  
 

Recorder’s Office 
 

 
The new assignments and positions are attached to these minutes 
 
Council Member Manzione moved to accept the positions as discussed in the work meeting.  
Council Member McCall seconded the motion. The vote was as follows: Council Member 
McCall, “Aye,” Council Member Hansen, “Aye,” Council Member Gochis, “Aye,” Council 
Member Manzione, “Aye,” and Chairman Brady, “Aye.” The motion passed.  
 
5. Mayor’s Youth Recognition Awards 
Mayor Debbie Winn and Chief Day presented youth recognition awards to the following: 
Ambrie Woodrick 
Eva Gonzales  
 
6. Public Comment Period 
The public hearing was opened. No one came forward. The public hearing was closed.  
 
7. Tooele Technical College Student of the Year and Annual Update 
Presented by President Paul Hacking 
 
Mr. Hacking presented Tooele Technical College Student of the Year to the following: 
Brenda Saavedra   
 
Ms. Saavedra shared her story and success.  
 
8. Public Hearing and Motion on Ordinance 2023-44 An Ordinance of Tooele City 
Amending Tooele City Codes Chapters 7-11A-18 Regarding Multi-Family Residential 
Building Materials, 7-11A-12 Regarding Multi-Family Residential Landscaping Standards 
and 7-11A-25 Regarding Deviations from Multi-Family Residential Design Standards 
Presented by Andrew Aagard, Community Development Director 
 
Mr. Aagard presented an amendment to the Multi-Family Residential building materials, 
landscaping standards, and deviations found in the City codes. Staff is proposing to reduce stone 
and brick on front and street façade to 40% with two additional materials chosen from the 
approved list. The tree and shrub changes would simplify the tree requirements; Allowing the 
code to be easier to read and interpret. Staff is proposing to strike the deviation from the code all 
together. The Planning Commission forwarded a positive recommendation.  
 
The public hearing was opened. No one came forward. The public hearing was closed.  
 
The Council asked the following questions: 
How did you come up with the number of trees and shrubs? 
How does it look on the acreage?  
Is there a limit of each type of tree? 
 



 

Page | 3  
 

Recorder’s Office 
 

Mr. Aagard addressed the Council’s questions. Variations look great. This number has been used 
in other cities and seems to work great. The choice of tree does have to come from the Tooele 
City Species list.  
 
Council Member McCall motioned to approve Ordinance 2023-44; An Ordinance of Tooele 
City Amending Tooele City Codes Chapters 7-11A-18 Regarding Multi-Family Residential 
Building Materials, 7-11A-12 Regarding Multi-Family Residential Landscaping Standards 
and 7-11A-25 Regarding Deviations from Multi-Family Residential Design Standards. 
Council Member Hansen seconded the motion. The vote was as follows: Council Member 
McCall, “Aye,” Council Member Hansen, “Aye,” Council Member Gochis, “Aye,” Council 
Member Manzione, “Aye,” and Chairman Brady, “Aye.” The motion passed.  
 
9. Public Hearing and Motion on Ordinance 2023-45 An Ordinance of Tooele City 
Amending the Tooele City Annexation Policy Plan, an Element of the Tooele City General 
Plan 
Presented by Andrew Aagard, Community Development Director 
 
Mr. Aagard presented an amendment to the Tooele City Annexation Policy Plan. The policy plan 
is an element of the general plan to identify areas adjacent to the City’s boundaries that can be 
considered for annexation. Staff is proposing to update the map taking out properties that will not 
be annexed in to Tooele City due to lack of utilities, undevelopable, or incorporated into another 
city, town, or government entity. The Planning Commission forward a negative 
recommendation, 5:2 vote.  
 
Council Member Manzione shared some of the discussion from the Planning Commission.  
 
The public hearing was opened.  
 
Randy Gochis shared his disagreement with the changes to the Annexation Policy Plan.  
 
Curtis shared his opinion that the decision can always be changed later if something was 
approved tonight.  
 
The public hearing was closed.  
 
The Council discussed removing the areas that have been incorporated into other Cities, but 
keeping the unincorporated areas D, H, K, F, E, and G in the annexation policy plan.  
 
Council Member Brady motioned to remove area A, B, I, J, and C from the Annexation 
Policy Plan, keeping the remaining areas as is. Council Member Hansen seconded the motion. 
The vote was as follows: Council Member McCall, “Nay,” Council Member Hansen, “Aye,” 
Council Member Gochis, “Aye,” Council Member Manzione, “Aye,” and Chairman Brady, 
“Aye.” The motion passed. 
 



 

Page | 4  
 

Recorder’s Office 
 

10. Public Hearing and Motion on Ordinance 2023-46 An Ordinance of Tooele City 
Reassigning the Land Use Designation for Approximately 6.9 Acres of Property Located at 
1232 West Utah Avenue from Light Industrial (LI) to Industrial (I) 
Presented by Andrew Aagard, Community Development Director 
 
Mr. Aagard presented a Land Use Designation for the property located at 1232 west Utah 
Avenue. Markosian Auto would like to change the property to the Industrial zone. The applicant 
would like to facilitate some additional uses on the site including long term vehicle storage and 
autobody repair. The Planning Commission forwarded a negative recommendation.  
 
The Council asked the following questions:  
Are they required to have a fence? 
How is it different from the Industrial service? 
 
The Council shared concerns of allowing Industrial in this area for future businesses that could 
come in.  
 
Mr. Aagard addressed the Council’s questions. Currently the ordinance does not have a 
requirement for a fence. Though this item will require a Conditional Use Permit and the Planning 
Commission could mitigate those. The Industrial Service is similar to Light Industrial. Only one 
comment was received from Jacob Clegg. He expressed concern of having Industrial Use close 
to his range land.  
 
The public hearing was opened.  
 
The applicant shared the reasoning behind requesting the change. They want to be good partners 
to the community and the City.  
 
The public hearing was closed.  
 
The Council discussed making a text amendment instead of changing the zoning.  
 
Mayor Winn addressed the Council. Markosian Auto has been a great business to work with. 
They bring in sales and property tax.  
 
Council Member Manzione motioned to deny the Ordinance of Tooele City Reassigning the 
Land Use Designation for Approximately 6.9 Acres of Property Located at 1232 West Utah 
Avenue from Light Industrial (LI) to Industrial (I), with the staff working with the 
applicant to create a text amendment adding into the table of uses in the Light Industrial.   
Council Member McCall seconded the motion. The vote was as follows: Council Member 
McCall, “Aye,” Council Member Hansen, “Aye,” Council Member Gochis, “Aye,” Council 
Member Manzione, “Aye,” and Chairman Brady, “Aye.” The motion passed. 
 



 

Page | 5  
 

Recorder’s Office 
 

11. Resolution 2024-01 A Resolution of the Tooele City Council Declaring Certain 
Technology-Related Equipment and Certain Personal Property Surplus and Authorizing 
its Disposal (Library) 
Presented by Michelle Pitt, City Recorder 
 
Ms. Pitt presented technology-related equipment from the Library that no longer meet their 
needs. They are asking for it to be declared surplus, so it can be disposed of.  
 
Council Member Manzione to approve Resolution 2024-01; A Resolution of the Tooele City 
Council Declaring Certain Technology-Related Equipment and Certain Personal Property 
Surplus and Authorizing its Disposal (Library). Council Member Hansen seconded the 
motion. The vote was as follows: Council Member McCall, “Aye,” Council Member Hansen, 
“Aye,” Council Member Gochis, “Aye,” Council Member Manzione, “Aye,” and Chairman 
Brady, “Aye.” The motion passed. 
 
12. Ordinance 2024-01 An Ordinance of the Tooele City Council Establishing the Dates, 
Times, and Places of its Public Meetings in 2024 
Presented by Michelle Pitt, City Recorder 
 
Ms. Pitt presented the dates, times, and place of its public meetings for 2024.  
They will be held in the City Council Chambers at Tooele City Hall. The work meeting will be 
held at 5:30pm and the business meeting at 7:00pm on the first and third Wednesday of every 
month.  
 
Council Member Hansen motioned to approve Ordinance 2024-01; An Ordinance of the 
Tooele City Council Establishing the Dates, Times, and Places of its Public Meetings in 
2024. Council Member Gochis seconded the motion. The vote was as follows: Council Member 
McCall, “Aye,” Council Member Hansen, “Aye,” Council Member Gochis, “Aye,” Council 
Member Manzione, “Aye,” and Chairman Brady, “Aye.” The motion passed. 
 
13. Resolution 2024-02 A Resolution of the Tooele City Council Amending the City Fee 
Schedule to Include a Public Improvement Completion Extension Fee 
Presented by Roger Baker, City Attorney 
 
Mr. Baker presented an amendment to the City fee schedule including a public improvement 
completion extension fee in the amount of $150 fee. 
 
Council Member Manzione motioned to approve Resolution 2024-02; A Resolution of the 
Tooele City Council Amending the City Fee Schedule to Include a Public Improvement 
Completion Extension Fee. Council Member McCall seconded the motion. The vote was as 
follows: Council Member McCall, “Aye,” Council Member Hansen, “Aye,” Council Member 
Gochis, “Aye,” Council Member Manzione, “Aye,” and Chairman Brady, “Aye.” The motion 
passed. 
 
14. Invoices & Purchase Orders   



 

Page | 6  
 

Recorder’s Office 
 

Ms. Pitt presented the following invoices and purchase orders: 
 
Tooele City Arts Council for the FY2024 Arts Council Contributions in the amount of $117,500 
Bonneville Equipment Company for the Parks Department for Kubota equipment in the amount 
of $42,463.06 
Bonneville Equipment Company for the Cemetery for Kubota equipment in the amount of 
$39,402.45 
 
Council Member Gochis motioned to approve the invoices and purchase orders. Council 
Member Hansen seconded. The vote was as follows: Council Member McCall, “Aye,” Council 
Member Hansen, “Aye,” Council Member Gochis, “Aye,” Council Member Manzione, “Aye,” 
and Chairman Brady, “Aye.” The motion passed. 
 
15. Minutes 
There are no changes to the minutes 
 
Council Member McCall motioned to approve Minutes. Council Member Manzione 
seconded the motion. The vote was as follows: Council Member McCall, “Aye,” Council 
Member Hansen, “Aye,” Council Member Manzione, “Aye,” and Chairman Brady, “Aye.” The 
motion passed. 
 
Council Member Gochis abstained from voting.  
 
16. Adjourn 
Chairman Brady adjourned the meeting at 8:35pm.  
 
 
 
 
The content of the minutes is not intended, nor are they submitted, as a verbatim transcription of 
the meeting. These minutes are a brief overview of what occurred at the meeting.  
 
Approved this ___ day of January, 2024 
 
_____________________________________________  
Justin Brady, City Council Chair 
 
 
 








	CC Agenda
	2024-02 Ordinance Cul-de-sac Standards
	2024-02 Ordinance Cul-de-sac Standards.pdf
	2024-02 Exhibit A - TCC Amendment.pdf

	2024-05 Fee Schedule - water meters
	2024-06 Fee Schedule - garbage containers
	2024-07 REPC - She Enterprises
	2024-07 REPC - She Enteerprises.pdf
	2024-07 Exhibit A - REPC.pdf

	2023-39 Landmark Site Designation
	Phae 2 Plat Amendment, Staff Report (full) 1-10-24
	Staff Report, Drumore Phase 2 Plat Amendment 1-10-24
	STAFF REPORT

	Phase 2 Plat Amendment, Application form
	Drumore Phase 2 Plat Amendment 080423
	Sheets and Views
	sub plat



	Business Meeting 1-3-24
	Minutes 2



